
BUCKLEY CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
Tuesday, January 9, 2024, at 6:00 P.M. 
Multi-Purpose Center, 811 Main Street 
Next Ordinance #01-24, Next Resolution #24-01, Next Agenda Bill #24-001 
Or Via Zoom: 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83366597529?pwd=N2hMTmh5eEZ4TGpJd2dpbFp0cnkvdz09 
Call-in Number: 253-215-8782 
Meeting ID: 833 6659 7529    Meeting Passcode: 863441 

A. CALL TO ORDER
1. Pledge of Allegiance
2. Roll call
3. Agenda Modifications
4. Announcements, Appointments and Presentations

a. Council Committee Appointments

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Time Limit of Three Minutes (Citizens wishing to speak are Encouraged to sign
up at City Hall by Wednesday prior to the Council Meeting)

C. COMMITTEE REPORTS
1. Mayor’s Report Burkett 
2. Council Member Comments & Good of the Order

D. CONSENT AGENDA
a. Interlocal Agreement with Town of Wilkeson for Police Services
b. Approve Minutes of August 8, 2023, City Council Meeting
c. Approve Minutes of August 22, 2023, City Council Meeting
d. Approve Minutes of September 12, 2023, City Council Meeting
e. Approve Minutes of September 26, 2023, City Council Meeting
f. Approve Minutes of October 3, 2023, City Council Study Session
g. Approve Minutes of October 10, 2023, City Council Meeting
h. Claims and Payroll

E. REGULAR AGENDA

1. UNFINISHED BUSINESS
a. Architecture and Engineering Services Proposal for Phase 2 Redesign of City Hall

Addition and Modernization Project

2. NEW BUSINESS

F. STAFF REPORTS
1. City Administrator Update

G. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Time Limit of Three Minutes

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024 1



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

2



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

3



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

4



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

5



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

6



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

C. COMMITTEE REPORTS 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

7



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

D. CONSENT AGENDA 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

8



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

9



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

10



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

11



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

12



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

13



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

14



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

15



 

City Council Minutes – August 8, 2023 1 
  
 

  
City Council 

August 8, 2023 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Smith, Rose, Burbank, Green (Via 
Zoom), Arsanto, Tremblay, and Anderson 
 
Also present were: City Administrator Brunell, Finance Director Hines, Senior Center 
Coordinator Mickelson, Public Works Director Banks (via Zoom), Police Chief Alfano, City 
Engineer Miller (via Zoom), and City Clerk Percival 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith asked if there were any other additions, deletions, or changes to 
the agenda. 
 
Council member Arsanto moved to approve the agenda as amended.  Council member 
Anderson seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS, APPOINTMENTS, AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
None. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
 
None. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Mayor’s Report:   
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith stated that he had nothing to share this evening. 
 
Council Member Comments & Good of the Order:  
 
Council member Tremblay wanted to thank everyone for a great National Night Out. 
 
Council member Smith wanted to echo Council member Tremblay’s comments 
regarding National Night Out. 
 
Council member Green shared that he missed the PCRC meeting due to being sick but 
listened to the recording and shared that the main thing that was discussed was a 
presentation by Pierce Transit. 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

16



 

City Council Minutes – August 8, 2023 2 
  
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Council Member Rose moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Council member 
Burbank seconded the motion. Motion carried. 
 

a. Approve Minutes of February 7, 2023, City Council Study Session 
b. Approve Minutes of February 28, 2023, City Council Meeting 
c. Approve Minutes of March 7, 2023, City Council Study Session 
d. Approve Minutes of April 25, 2023, City Council Meeting 

 
STAFF REPORTS  
 
City Administrator Updates: 
 
City Hall Remodel – City Administrator Brunell gave an updated presentation on the City 
Hall Remodel project. 
 
Council member Arsanto asked if we could move this to a Study Session to discuss. 
 
City Administrator Brunell stated that we could do that or we could discuss tonight if the 
Council wanted. 
 
Council member Tremblay shared that he would prefer a Study Session on the budget 
before we discuss using reserves.  
 
Council member Arsanto asked what it would cost to build a new building on property 
already owned by the City. 
 
Council member Smith shared that he feels that City Hall should stay where it is at.  He 
also shared that if the Building and Planning Department was able to move into City 
Hall, we could avoid folks having to go to multiple locations for permits, etc. 
 
Council member Green stated that he would like to explore some options of remote or 
hybrid work, exploring acquiring or leasing a building offsite or looking at shifting office 
space. 
 
UGA – City Administrator Brunell shared a presentation regarding a proposed UGA. 
 
Council member Tremblay shared that we didn’t reject the idea from the County, we 
rejected the numbers.  He stated that we shouldn’t just add acreage if it doesn’t supply 
additional revenue to service them. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

17



 

City Council Minutes – August 8, 2023 3 
  
 

Council member Green thanked City Administrator Brunell for taking a deep dive into 
this and he fully supports the City getting its ducks in a row and looking at zoning before 
accepting what the County has proposed. 
 
Council member Smith shared that a week ago he went on a comprehensive look at the 
South Prairie Creek water conservation with Public Works Director Banks and he highly 
recommends that all Council members take the time to do this as it is well worth it. 
 
 
Council member Arsanto moved to adjourn.  Council member Tremblay seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
With nothing further, the meeting was adjourned at 6:41 PM. 
 
 
 
City Administrator     Mayor 
 
Prepared by:  Treva Percival, City Clerk 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

18



 

City Council Minutes – August 22, 2023 1 
  
 

City Council 
August 22, 2023 

 
Mayor Burkett called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Smith, Rose, Burbank, Green, 
Arsanto, Tremblay, and Anderson 
 
Also present were: City Administrator Brunell, Public Works Director Banks (via Zoom), 
Fire Chief Skogen, City Engineer Miller (via Zoom), Director of Parks & Recreation 
Snodgrass (via Zoom), and City Clerk Percival 
 
Mayor Burkett asked if there were any other additions, deletions, or changes to the 
agenda. 
 
City Administrator Brunell shared that we need to Amend the Agenda to remove the 
swearing in of Firefighter Smith. 
 
Council member Smith moved to approve the agenda as amended.  Council member 
Green seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS, APPOINTMENTS, AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
Council member Smith moved to appoint Charles Martin to the fill the vacancy on the 
Senior Citizen Advisory Commission.  Council member Rose seconded the motion.  
Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Burkett stated that there are two vacancies on Planning Commission and he has 
received three applications.  His recommendation is to appoint Robert Wohfeil and 
Ashley Fererro. 
 
Council member Smith moved to approve Mayor Burkett’s recommendations to fill 
the Planning Commission vacancies.  Council member Rose seconded the motion.  
Motion carried. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
 
Mayor’s Comments… 
 
Carolyn Harding – Ms. Harding shared that she is the secretary of the Chamber of 
Commerce and there is strong opposition from the Chamber of the City implementing a 
B&O tax. 
 
Jasmine Tran – Ms. Tran shared some Buckley Library news.  She said the summer 
reading program is going great and they had approximately 50-60 kids for story time.  

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

19



 

City Council Minutes – August 22, 2023 2 
  
 

She also shared that you soon will see some work being done at the library and new 
landscaping will be installed. 
 
Connie Bender – Ms. Bender shared her concerns regarding the possible B&O tax. Ms. 
Bender also shared that no money should be taken away from Police or Fire to balance 
the budget. 
 
Ali Santman- Ms. Santman shared that she is the President of the Chamber and also a 
business owner in Buckley.  She stated that she had sent a letter out to Council and was 
going to read that aloud now. She shared concerns over the City implementing a B&O 
tax.  She also stated that the Council has always been supportive of the businesses and 
they are still dealing with the effects of COVID and are unable to afford another tax. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Administration, Finance & Public Safety:   
 
Council member Smith shared that the Committee met on August 14th and discussed the 
following items: 

• Recruitment update 
• Special Event update 
• City Hall remodel 
• Police recruitment update 
• Request from South Prairie about possibly contracting for Fire service. 

 
Transportation & Utilities:   
 
Council member Arsanto reported that the Committee met on August 15th and 
discussed the following topics: 

• Recruitment Status Update 
• Hinkleman Road Contaminated Soil Update 
• WWTP Outfall Mixing Zone Study – Professional Services 
• Completion of Water System Leak Survey 
• Consolidated Utilities Project Status Update 
• City Hall Remodel 

 
Council Member Comments & Good of the Order:  
 
Council member Green shared that when he was first appointed to Council, the Council 
passed a Resolution to allow him to continue to serve as a Volunteer Firefighter and 
unfortunately he has had to make the tough decision to resign from his Fire service.  He 
wanted to thank the Chief and the entire department for their support. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

20



 

City Council Minutes – August 22, 2023 3 
  
 

Council member Smith stated that we have heard from citizens and business owners 
regarding a possible B&O tax and he shared that this is being presented as an option 
from staff, not from Council. He shared that the Council is open to other options to help 
pay for City services. He also shared that he would never support any cuts to Police or 
Fire.  He also brought up the City Hall remodel and shared that we have to have staff to 
support and serve and we are running out of room.  He shared that he doesn’t feel the 
City is proposing to build the Taj Mahal but just a building that can be a one stop for 
citizens without having to go to multiple buildings for some services.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Council Member Smith moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Council member 
Green seconded the motion. Motion carried. 
 

a) Engineering Services Proposal Wastewater Treatment Plant Facility Outfall 
Mixing Zone Study 

b) Approve minutes of April 11, 2023, City Council Meeting 
c) Approve minutes of May 9, 2023, City Council Meeting 
d) Claim check numbers 66419 through 66481 in the amount of $148,041.28 for 

July 27, 2023, through August 7, 2023; and payroll check numbers 40516 
through 40545 in the amount of $121,140.71 and ACH Payroll in the amount 
of $429,482.14 for August 8, 2023 through August 21, 2023; and claim check 
numbers 66482 through 66540 and 66955 in the amount of $180,915.79 for 
August 8, 2023, through August 21, 2023. 

 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
RES No. 23-11: Amending the City Taxes, Rates, and Fees Schedule (Revision #36) 
Council member Burbank moved to Approve RES No. 23-11 Amending the City Taxes, 
Rates, and Fees Schedule (Revision #36). Council member Smith seconded the motion.  
Motion carried. 
   
Design Contract for the Second Addition of City Hall with Gray and Osborne 
Engineering and Tovani Hart Architects for up to $100,000. 
Council member Smith moved to Approve the Design Contract for the Second Addition 
of City Hall, not to exceed $100,000.  Council member Green seconded the motion. 
Motion failed. 
 
STAFF REPORTS  
 
City Administrator Brunell – Ms. Brunell shared information on legislative priorities for 
Council to review and stated that this will be brough back in October for further 
discussion.   
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

21



 

City Council Minutes – August 22, 2023 4 
  
 

Council member Tremblay shared that PCRC also creates a list of legislative priorities 
and he feels that we should roll ours into theirs. 
 
Council member Green stated that there is definitely some overlap between PCRC’s and 
the City and he strongly supports the legislation for Public Safety.  
 
Council member Smith shared that he is in support of a meeting to look at the possible 
Public Safety legislation and supporting those. 
 
Ms. Brunell also shared that B&O tax scenarios will be at the next Study Session along 
with the Housing Action Plan which needs to be adopted by September 30th. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
 
Amy Boucher – Ms. Boucher stated that she was speaking on behalf of the Buckley 
Downtown Association in regards to the City Hall remodel.  She would like to make sure 
that historic preservation is considered.  She thanked the Council for their support of 
the summer series.  The last Hometown Market will be on August 31st. She shared that 
the car show was a great success and it was wonderful to see a lot of the City’s youth 
there.  
 
Karli Britt – Ms. Britt shared that she owns Salon 790 and wanted to share her concern 
regarding a possible B&O tax.  She shared that this is not supportive in bringing new 
businesses to Buckley. 
 
Matt McCollum – Mr. McCollum shared that he walks around town and people think we 
should build a new City Hall. 
 
Council member Arsanto moved to adjourn.  Council member Tremblay seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
With nothing further, the meeting was adjourned at 7:06 PM. 
 
 
 
 
City Administrator       Mayor 
 
 
Prepared by:  Treva Percival, City Clerk 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

22



 

City Council Minutes – September 12, 2023 1 
  
 

  
City Council 

September 12, 2023 
 
Mayor Burkett called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:01 PM. 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Smith, Burbank, Arsanto, and 
Tremblay 
 
Also present were: City Administrator Brunell, Finance Director Hines, Director of Parks 
& Recreation Snodgrass, Director of Building & Planning Terrell (via Zoom), Public Works 
Director Banks (via Zoom), Asst. Fire Chief Olson, Police Records Clerk Burkett, 
Firefighter Smith, City Attorney Olbrechts (via Zoom), and City Clerk Percival 
 
Council member Burbank moved to excuse Council members Green, Anderson, and 
Rose. Council member Arsanto seconded the motion. Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Burkett asked if there were any other additions, deletions, or changes to the 
Amended agenda. 
 
Council member Arsanto moved to approve the agenda as Amended.  Council member 
Tremblay seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS, APPOINTMENTS, AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
Mayor Burkett administered the Oath of Office to Firefighter Connor Smith. 
 
Mayor Burkett stated that we would like to take a moment to thank a dedicated group 
of behind-the-scenes volunteers that for over the past decade and a half have guided, 
fundraised, and supported our Youth Center. Tonight the City Council is set to review an 
MOU to dissolve the agreement with the Board and committing to including the Youth 
Center in the yearly work plan of the Citizens Advisory Commission.  The Board has 
stated in the agreement that they intend to donate the balance of their funds to the City 
to be used for ongoing support at the Buckly Youth Center. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Administration, Finance & Public Safety:   
 
Council member Smith share that the Committee met on September 11th and discussed 
the following topics: 

• Recruitment update 
• 2024 Budget presentations from Police, Fire, Court, Finance, Administration and 

IT. 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

23



 

City Council Minutes – September 12, 2023 2 
  
 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Council Member Arsanto moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Council member 
Burbank seconded the motion. Motion carried. 
 

1. Approve Minutes of March 28, 2023, City Council Minutes 
2. Approve Minutes of June 27, 2023, City Council Minutes 
3. Claim check numbers 66541 through 66614 in the amount of $174,964.08 for 

August 22, 2023, through September 11, 2023. 
 

REGULAR AGENDA 
 
MOU to Dissolve the Current Agreement with Buckley Youth Activities Board 
Council member Smith moved to Approve the Memorandum of Understanding 
between the City of Buckley and Buckley Youth Activities.  Council member Arsanto 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
STAFF REPORTS  
 
Housing Action Plan Review 
Director of Building and Planning Terrell shared that the HAPI grant was awarded by 
Commerce and Council adopted a Resolution in June; which was necessary to get this 
grant.  She shared what we currently have and what we need for the plan. 
 
Council member Tremblay stated that he would like to see it be more Buckley specific 
rather than boilerplate. He also shared that we would have to make changes to lot sizes 
to get affordable housing. He also shared that if it is taking 15-18 months to get a permit 
is unacceptable.  
 
Mayor Burkett stated that this plan will be revised many times. 
 
Parks & Recreation 
Director Snodgrass gave an update about Beautify Buckley, she shared that Amy Molen 
had said they had over 150 people show up and over 500 hours of service such as 
gardening and painting.  She thanked the different organizations that supported this 
event and shared that they had volunteers from toddlers to seniors. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
 
Jay Hambly – Mr. Hambly wanted to share his thanks for recognizing the Youth Board 
and had them all introduce themselves. He then presented the City with a check from 
the Youth Board for $50,059.11 and shared that he feels very comfortable about the 
Youth Activities Center future with Erin’s leadership. 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

24



 

City Council Minutes – September 12, 2023 3 
  
 

 
Mayor Burkett announced that Council would hold a closed session immediately 
following Council once all public had left chambers. 
 
Council member Tremblay moved to adjourn.  Council member Arsanto seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
With nothing further, the meeting was adjourned at 6:26 PM. 
 
 
 
 
Mayor       City Administrator 
 
Prepared by:  Treva Percival, City Clerk 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

25



 

City Council Minutes – September 26, 2023 1 
  
 

City Council 
September 26, 2023 

 
Mayor Burkett called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Smith, Rose (via Zoom), Burbank, 
Green, Arsanto (via Zoom), and Tremblay 
 
Also present were: City Administrator Brunell, Director of Parks & Recreation Snodgrass, 
Polce Records Clerk Burkett, Police Chief Alfano, Director of Building & Planning Terrell, 
and City Clerk Percival 
 
Council member Green moved to excuse Council member Anderson.  Council member 
Smith seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Mayor Burkett asked if there were any other additions, deletions, or changes to the 
agenda. 
 
Council member Tremblay moved to approve the agenda as presented.  Council 
member Burbank seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
 
Marvin Sundstrom Jr.  – Mr. Sundstrom shared his concerns with the Housing Action 
Plan.  He feels that building is cyclical and we should wait to see what is going to 
happen.  He also shared that the nots from the plan states that there was 11 individuals 
involved and citizens don’t know who they are or if they are stakeholders.  He wondered 
if any Council was involved and this is a very complex plan that will take several hours of 
commitment. 
 
Donna Peterson – Ms. Peterson shared that she is new to Buckley and just wants to 
make sure that if COVID becomes an issue again that the City will allow the schools and 
businesses to stay open. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Mayor’s Report:   
 
Mayor Burkett shared that the City had received 408 responses to the PROS Plan survey 
and that is astounding.  Another City with a population of 9,000 only received 809 
responses so we got a good idea of what people are looking for. 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

26



 

City Council Minutes – September 26, 2023 2 
  
 

Transportation & Utilities:   
 
Council member Smith shared that the Committee met and received a budget 
presentation for the Public Works department. 
 
Community Services:  
 
Council member Green shared that the Committee met and heard budget presentations 
from the Building & Planning Department and the Parks & Recreation Department. 
 
Council Member Comments & Good of the Order:  
 
Council member Green stated that he attended the PCRC meeting last Thursday and 
there was two main topics which were GMCC and Pierce County UGA.  There was also a 
discussion regarding the space on 410 between Bonney Lake and Buckley. There was 
also discussion on funding competitions and that they are currently always going to the 
larger cities and there needs to be a way to make it more equitable. There hasn’t been a 
vote on that yet.  
 
Council member Tremblay shared that the Meet the Candidates event at Five 2 Five is 
on October 9th and he recommended that everyone attend.  
 
Council member Smith shared that he appreciates Ms. Peterson’s comments regarding 
COVID; however any mandates that come from the State or Federal government have to 
be followed by Buckley and the school district is bound by the OSP. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Council Member Smith moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Council member 
Green seconded the motion. Motion carried. 
 

1. Approve Minutes of April 4, 2023, City Council Study Session 
2. Approve Minutes of April 18, 2023, Special City Council Study Session 
3. Approve Minutes of July 11, 2023, City Council Meeting 
4. Approve Minutes of July 12, 2023, Special City Council Meeting 
5. Claims and Payroll: Payroll check numbers 40546 through 40576 in the 

amount of $129,070.97 and ACH Payroll in the amount of $420,458.22 
for September 12, 2023, through September 25, 2023; and Claim check 
numbers 66615 through 66669 in the amount of $318,359.33 for 
September 12, 2023, through September 25, 2023. 

 
 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

27



 

City Council Minutes – September 26, 2023 3 
  
 

 
REGULAR AGENDA 
 
RES No. 23-12: Adopting the City of Buckley Housing Action Plan 
Council member Tremblay moved to Approve RES No. 23-12 Housing Action Plan and 
Appendices.  Council member Burbank seconded the motion. Motion carried.  
   
RCO Local Parks Maintenance Program Applicant Authorization 
Council member Smith moved to Approve the Local Parks Maintenance Program 
Applicant Authorization Form as Presented.  Council member Burbank seconded the 
motion. Motion carried. 
 
Interlocal Agreement with the White River School District to Purchase and Install a 
Rapid Flashing Beacon Signal and Crosswalk for 4th Street and Park 
Council member Burbank moved to Authorize the City Administrator to sign an 
Interlocal Agreement with the White River School District to Install a New Crosswalk 
with Rapid Flashing Beacons at 4th Street and Park Avenue.  Council member Tremblay 
seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Hinkleman Road Improvement Project – Change Order #1 
Council member Smith moved to Approve Change Order #1 for the Hinkleman Road 
Improvement Project.  Council member Green seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
STAFF REPORTS  
 
City Administrator Brunell shared that we are moving forward with the carpet 
replacement in the Court offices on October 20th and 21st so we may have to close the 
Senior Center while this work is being done. 
 
Council member Rose moved to adjourn.  Council member Burbank seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
With nothing further, the meeting was adjourned at 6:33 PM. 
 
 
 
 
City Administrator     Mayor 
 
Prepared by:  Treva Percival, City Clerk 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

28



 

City Council Study Session – October 3, 2023 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
STUDY SESSION 
October 3, 2023 

 
ATTENDEES:  Council members Rose (via Zoom), Arsanto, Tremblay, Smith, Burbank and Green.  
 
Also in attendance were Mayor Burkett, City Administrator Brunell, Finance Director Hines, Director of 
Parks and Recreation Snodgrass, Court Administrator Cash, Fire Chief Skogen, Police Chief Alfano and 
Deputy City Clerk Clark.  
 
Mayor Pro Tem Smith called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:00 PM. 
 
PRO’s Plan Update: 
Director of Parks and Recreation Snodgrass gave a PowerPoint presentation on PRO’s plan for Buckley 
Parks, Recreation and Open Space, in this presentation she highlighted the views, needs and desires of 
the community.  She spoke on parks and trails, how people are using the parks and what facilities are 
most important for citizens.  Ms. Snodgrass spoke on the survey that went out Aug. 8, 2023 – Sept. 14, 
2023, and what citizens in Buckley would prefer for future parks.  The top three facilities that were voiced 
in the survey were for a splash pad, trail expansion and new or updated playgrounds.   
 
Budget Presentations: 
 
Parks and Recreation: 
Director of Parks and Recreation Snodgrass spoke to Council for her budget presentation and informed 
Council that the Parks and Recreation Dept. is a cornerstone of the community’s well-being and 
enrichment, dedicated to providing accessible and diverse recreational opportunities that enhance the 
quality of life for individuals of all ages and backgrounds in Buckley.  Ms. Snodgrass gave an overview of 
2023 accomplishments for facilities, parks, Senior Center, Youth Center, community recreation, and 
Buckley Hall such as; completion of the Rainier Gateway  Multi Use Sports Court, transformation of the 
fountain to a planter with better visibility of Mayors Plaques, maintaining aging City facilities, 
establishment of Senior Citizens Advisory Commission, over 2,200 volunteer hours served through Senior 
Center operations, Food for Friends feeding program for delivery to Buckley Seniors, Extended Learning 
Grant received for tutorial and mental health programs for Youth Center, Youth Violence Prevention 
Grants, entertainment and family concerts, Cinema on Sheets free movies, and much more.   
Key projects for 2024 include adoption of the PRO’s plan, apply for grant funding for Miller Park, continue 
offering five day a week meal plan for Senior Center and expand offerings for travel and services off the 
plateau, apply for Youth Prevention Grant for 2025, building community by expanding to seven weeks of 
youth entertainment and family concerts, start an intergenerational event by bringing Youth Center and 
Senior Center together, and updates for Buckley Hall.   
 
Court: 
Court Administrator Cash presented to Council the 2023 accomplishments for the Buckley Municipal Court 
including in-person hearing calendar while maintaining a Zoom calendar, established Food and Folders 
program, giving those that may need a folder for their court paperwork or a snack/water, and presented 
the 2023 Buckley Police Department Citizens Academy.  Along with this the court processed 1,052 cases 
for 2023 and updated Council for 2024 anticipated key projects such as: participate in Judge in the 
Classroom Day and other local school events, update courtroom equipment, technology, and furniture, 
and research software and equipment options to implement paperless files and documents.   
 
Police Department: 
Police Chief Alfano presented to the Council that the Buckley Police Department is dedicated to ensuring 
the safety of the community and that their goal is to reduce crime through education, enforcement 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

29



 

City Council Study Session – October 3, 2023 
 

prevention and problem solving.  2023 accomplishments for Buckley Police Department were replacing 
the heating and air conditioning units, completed construction of the police shooting range, 1st annual 
Buckley Police Citizen’s Academy, converting paper files to electronic, adding two new patrol SUVs to the 
fleet, negotiated Police Service Contracts with Wilkeson, Carbonado and DSHS and much more.  Key 
projects for 2024 include holding the 2nd annual Buckley Police Citizen’s Academy, complete evidence 
room swap, building in-service training to reduce the impact of costs for training outside the department, 
and continuing their involvement with community events.  
 
Fire: 
Fire Chief Skogen presented to Council that the Buckley Fire Department delivers Fire, Rescue & 
Emergency Medical Services within incorporated boundaries of City of Buckley and Town of Wilkeson.  
Through contracts they also provide administrative and operational insight to Town of Carbonado Fire 
Dept.  While response to 9-1-1 emergencies is one of the most visible duties, the Buckley Fire Department 
performs several other services to the community as hosting monthly CPR and First Aid classes, providing 
helmets, life jackets and child car seat inspections.  2023 accomplishments include a 16% increase in calls 
for service compared to 2022, filling one vacant full-time Firefighter position that will eventually transition 
to assume Fire Marshall responsibilities, successfully completed migration from legacy VHF radio system 
to the County-Wide digital radio network, receiving a 2023 Crew Cab Pickup truck for Command Unit, 
launched the Code Red alert and warning application to notify community members of local hazards and 
pertinent information, and receiving competitive grants for capital projects.  2024 anticipated key projects 
are the completion of the 2024-2029 Comprehensive Emergency Plan, implement City Emergency 
Operations Center activation procedures, research and propose EMS Levy Lid Lift, initiate implementation 
of expanded ALS Ambulance Service, and implement First Due Size Up application.   
 
 
 
With nothing further, the Study Session was adjourned at 7:37 PM.    
 
 
 
City Administrator         Mayor 
 
Prepared by:  Jessica Clark, Deputy City Clerk 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

30



 

City Council Minutes – October 10, 2023 1 
  
 

  
City Council 

October 10, 2023 
 
Mayor Burkett called the regularly scheduled meeting to order at 6:01 PM. 
 
Upon roll call the following members were present:  Smith, Rose (via Zoom), Burbank, 
Green, Arsanto, and Tremblay 
 
Council member Burbank moved to excuse Council member Anderson.  Council member 
Smith seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
Also present were: City Administrator Brunell, Senior Center Coordinator Mickelson, 
Director of Public Works Banks, City Engineer Miller, Utility Worker Seaburg, Permit 
Technician Rohner, Parks Maintenance worker Lacy, Utility Worker Lead Rice, Court 
Administrator Cash, Judge Berry, Fire Chief Skogen, Police Records Clerk Burkett, Police 
Chief Alfano, Police Records Clerk VanWiergen, Utility Worker Mickelson, and City Clerk 
Percival 
 
Mayor Burkett asked if there were any other additions, deletions, or changes to the 
agenda. 
 
Council member Smith moved to approve the agenda as presented.  Council member 
Burbank seconded the motion.  Motion carried. 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS, APPOINTMENTS, AND PRESENTATIONS 
 
Senior Advisory Commission – Workplan Review 
The Senior Advisory Commission shared that they had met four times and created a 
mission.  They introduced the members that were present.  
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
 
None. 
 
COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 
Administration, Finance & Public Safety:   
 
Council member Smith shared that the Committee met on October 9th and discussed the 
following topics: 
 

• ICAP Presentation 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

31



 

City Council Minutes – October 10, 2023 2 
  
 

• Recruitment update 
• Event Update 

 
Community Services:  
 
Council member Green shared that the Committee met last Monday and discussed the 
PROS plan.  He also shared that the Committee will be meeting via Zoom for the rest of 
the year. 
 
Council Member Comments & Good of the Order:  
 
Council member Tremblay wanted to thank the Chamber for hosting the Meet the 
Candidates forum and thank the candidates for attending and Pierce County Council 
member Morrell for his attendance. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 
Council Member Arsanto moved to approve the Consent Agenda.  Council member 
Grenn seconded the motion. Motion carried. 
 

1. Bid Award – Mundy Loss Road Storm Improvement Project 
2. Professional Services Construction Management Contract – Mundy Loss Road 

Storm Improvement Project 
3. Approve Minutes of May 2, 2023, City Council Study Session 
4. Approve Minutes of June 6, 2023, City Council Study Session 
5. Claims: Claim check numbers 66670 through 666761 in the amount of 

$610,986.81 for September 26, 2023, through October 9, 2023. 
 
STAFF REPORTS  
 
3rd Quarter Public Safety Report 
Police Chief Alfano asked if any Council members had questions regarding the report he 
included in the Council packet.  He stated that the Department had a relatively low call 
volume the last quarter and productivity will increase in the next quarter. 
 
3rd Quarter Fire Department Staff Report 
Fire Chief Skogen shared that his report was also included in the packet.  As always he is 
extremely proud of the service the Department has provided.  They continue to get 
busier with concurrent or overlapping calls 25% of the time.  The Department is still 
providing a sustainable service but to stay ahead, we will need more full-time personnel.  
We currently have 55 volunteers and we need at least 80.  He shared that the 
Department held a recruitment event with over 50 people in attendance. 
 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

32



 

City Council Minutes – October 10, 2023 3 
  
 

Council member Simth shared that he was glad to hear that over 50 people attended 
the recruitment event and 36 applications have been received. He reminded everyone 
that in March 2020, the Buckley Fire Department showed up at the schools to make sure 
all the Chromebooks were ready for each student to take home before school closed 
due to David. 
 
Q2/Q3 Municipal Court Update 
Judge Berry thanked the Council for having the Court there to present.  She stated that 
there was a summary included in the packet.  She also encouraged anyone who wants 
to understand better or know more to please reach out.  Better communication is their 
top priority. 
 
City Administrator Update 
City Administrator Brunell wanted to thank the members of the team for being present 
at tonight’s meeting. 
 
CITIZEN PARTICIPATION  
 
None. 
 
In closing, Mayor Burkett wanted everyone to wish City Administrator Brunell a Happy 
One Year Anniversary with the City. 
 
Council member Smith moved to adjourn.  Council member Arsanto seconded the 
motion.  Motion carried. 
 
With nothing further, the meeting was adjourned at 6:39 PM. 
 
 
 
 
Mayor       City Administrator 
 
Prepared by:  Treva Percival, City Clerk 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

33



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

34



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

35



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

E. REGULAR AGENDA 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

36



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

37



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

38



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

39



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

40



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

41



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

42



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

43



City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

44



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

F. STAFF REPORTS 

City Council Agenda Packet - 1/9/2024
 

45


	City Council Agenda - 1.9.2024
	B. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	Public Comment - Email
	C. COMMITTEE REPORTS
	D. CONSENT AGENDA
	Consent Agenda Item 1
	City Council Minutes 08-08-2023
	City Council Minutes 08-22-2023
	City Council Minutes 09-12-2023
	City Council Minutes 09-26-2023
	City Council Minutes 10-03-2023 (Study Session)
	City Council Minutes 10-10-2023
	Claims
	E. REGULAR AGENDA
	Regular Agenda Item 1
	F. STAFF REPORTS



